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Annex 1

Invitation to Attend the General Assembly
Meeting for RAS AL KHAIMAH CO. FOR
WHITE CEMENT & CONSTRUCTION
MATERIALS PSC (the “Company” or
“RAKWCT”)

The Board of Directors of the Company
("Board of Directors”) is honored to invite the
shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) to attend the General
Assembly Meeting (“”) which will be held
physically at 11:00 am on Tuesday 9 July 2024
at Waldorf Astoria Hotel - Ras Al Khaimah,
United Arab Emirates and electronically/from
distance to consider, discuss or, as the case
may be, approve the following:

1. Ratifying the entry into the implementation
agreement between the Company and
ULTRA TECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST
INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“Ultra Tech”)
(“Implementation Agreement”) entered
into on 29 May 2024, setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate
to the conditional cash offer of Ultra Tech
to acquire 158,049,610 shares
representing 31.6% of the issued and paid
up ordinary share capital of the Company,
with a value of AED 1.15 in cash for each
share of the Company (according to the
terms and conditions set out in the Ultra
Tech Offer Document (“Offer”).

2. Ratify of the conditional cash Offer from
Ultra Tech to the Board of Directors to
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4. Ratifying

acquire 158,049,610 shares, representing
31.6% of the issued and paid up ordinary
share capital of the Company, not already
held by Ultra Tech.

To approve the authorisation of the Board
of Directors, or any person so authorised
by the Board of Directors, to adopt any
resolution or take any action as may be
necessary to implement any of the above
resolutions including, without limitation, to
apply to Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
to update the Company’s share register to
record the shares of those who have
accepted the Offer in the name of Ultra
Tech following the close of the Offer
period. The Board of Directors is
authorised to communicate with the
Securities and Commodities Authority,
the Ministry of Economy, the Department
of Economic Development and the
competent authorities and Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, and further to be
authorised to take all necessary action to
amend the records with all persons and
entities whether official or otherwise.

the Board of Directors'
recommendation to accept the acquisition
offer from UltraTech Cement Middle East
Investments Limited ("UltraTech") to
acquire up to 31.6% of the issued and
paid-up ordinary shares in the company's
capital, and to explain the impact of the
acquisition offer's implementation on the
company.

Ratifying and presenting of the results and
recommendations submitted by the
financial advisor and the legal advisor
regarding the acquisition offer from
UltraTech.
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Notes:

2.

A shareholder who is entitled to attend the
GAM may delegate any person, who is
not a member of the Board of Directors,
employee of the Company or a brokerage
company or its employees to attend the
GAM on their behalf by virtue of a written
authorization/proxy made pursuant to a
written delegation. A proxy holder may
not represent a number of shareholders in
excess of 5% of the Company’s capital.
However, if the proxy is representing one
single shareholder, his/her proxy may
exceed 5% of the Company’s share
capital. Minors and those who have no
legal capacity shall be represented by
their legal representatives. In case the
quorum was not achieved in the first
meeting, the proxies issued for the first
meeting shall be considered valid for any
later meetings unless expressly cancelled
by the shareholder through a notification

to a.ayash@rakwhitecement.ae, at
least two days prior to the second
meeting. The requirements under
Clauses No. 1 and 2 and 4(c) of Article 40
of the Governance Guide on adopting
proxies shall be met. These requirements
are set out in the explanatory disclosure
on adopting proxies.

If a shareholder is a corporate person, it

Ol duaaznll joua> 3> A ) Jo2m
sbacl 48 e o)lide e die Cud
1 4S80 cxdaladl ol B)aYI uds
S AW BLeYl @ dbluy dS
e JSg paiie g el
JSI 0550 VT g (&USIL ol
Je dall odg 15l (radlunadl (e
ol oy Bl A (%5) ¢y AST
o WSy o 13 Wi @Sl Jb
3 3k O jgmsd usly edluw
S50 Jlo ol (30 %5 Ay il
PERUIE PR WES Y RPVN VR VT
pde J= é Lgild o 095Ul
gl 3 Gl Gladl Jls|
Byoba)l  OMSqil a3 (JgY
Lo oY sl g
da>Y Olelaix! GY 848L9 Jgaaoll
3 e dole LWL o o b
dl dzg sl saadl ealuall
a.ayash@rakwhitecement.ae
A ge oo JIYI e crog Jud iy
Blelyo cazgig 1da . 31 glaadl
o (T-4) 929 1 piidl wldlate
Olin &Se=dl Juds (e 40 83l
dwpgally Sl slaxel
sisl Olie (mosdl ZLasYl

S gl

_)_9.‘>u cl::_)b.;_c\ Lased ‘O.QLAMJ‘ US‘Jl

i

2



may delegate one of its representatives or
those in charge of its management by
way of a resolution passed by its board of
directors or any authorized person to
represent the corporate person in the
GAM. The delegated person shall have
the authority as determined by the
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text message with the registration and
voting link will be sent to all investors.

Each investor can register for attendance
and vote from the time of receipt of the link
until the beginning of the GAM at 10:00 am
on Tuesday 9 July 2024 at Waldorf Astoria
Hotel - Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab
Emirates.

The voting will be valid during the meeting
and the investors have the right to attend
the online meeting and keep or change
their vote.

Shareholders may watch the live broadcast
of the meeting through the registration and
voting link referred to above and submit
questions using the same link.

For inquiries please call Mr. Alaa Ayash —
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f)

Mob. No. 055/2522515 and Mr.
Abdelwahed Fathallah No. 072034227

The shareholders may review the
disclosure in relation to the procedure for
the adoption of a proxy published on the
Company’s website and the ADX.

Every shareholder whose name is
registered on 8 July 2024 shall be entitled
to attend and vote at the GAM. In case the
GAM is held on 16 July 2024 due to lack of
quorum in the first meeting, every
shareholder whose name is registered on
15 July 2024 shall be entitled to vote at the
GAM.

The shareholders can review the financial
statements and the Board report and the
auditors’ report by visiting the ADX
website www.adx.ae and the Company’s

website www.rakwhitecement.ae.

The GAM is valid only if attended by
shareholders holding or representing by
proxy at least 50% of the Company's
share capital. In the event that such
quorum is not achieved at the first GAM,
a second meeting will take place on
Tuesday 16 July 2024 at the same place
and time and the second meeting shall be
valid irrespective of the shareholders
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement
& Construction Materials P.S.C.

Transaction presentation
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Private and confidential

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction P.S.C.
Ras Al Khaimah
United Arab Emirates

03 June 2024
Dear Sirs,

Project Dome

We refer to our recent correspondence in relation to the engagement of KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
(“KPMG” or “we”) by Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction P.S.C. (“RAKWCT”) to
act as your adviser for providing limited support with regards to the proposed acquisition of
RAKWCT'’s listed shares on the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange (“ADX”) by Ultratech Cement Middle
East Investment Limited (“UltraTech”) (“Transaction”).

As stated in our Engagement Letter, you have agreed that this final written presentation (the
“Presentation”) will supersede all previous oral, draft, interim advice, reports and presentations, and
that any reliance will be placed by you on such oral, draft, interim advice, reports or presentations
only at your own risk.

Our Report is confidential and is released to you on the basis that it is not to be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent, save as permitted in our Engagement
Letter. The scope of work for this report has been agreed by the addressee and to the fullest extent
permitted by law we will not accept responsibility or liability to any other party, save as permitted in
our Engagement Letter (including the addressee’s legal and other professional advisers), in respect
of our work or the Report.

KPMG

T: +971-2-401 4800
F: +971-2-6327612
www.ae-kpmg.com

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
The Offices 5, One Central
Dubai World Trade Center
PO Box 3800

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

In accordance with our Engagement Letter, you may disclose our report to your legal and other
professional advisers in order to seek advise in relation to our work for you, provided that when
doing so you inform them that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, we accept no responsibility or
liability to them in connection with our Report and our work to you.

The scope of work is set out in our Engagement Letter. This details the agreed scope of our
enquiries, directed at those issues that you determined to be critical to you. You should note that our
findings do not constitute recommendations to you as to whether or not you should proceed with the
proposed course of action.

Yours faithfully,

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited



Important notice

This Presentation is prepared on the basis of information presented to us by the Company and/or its representatives, the offer submitted by UltraTech to the Board of Directors of RAKWCT (“BoD”), and publicly
available information.

We are not performing any management functions for you nor make any decisions. You are responsible for making management decisions, including accepting responsibility for the results. You should note that the
Presentation does not constitute recommendations to you as to whether or not you should proceed with the Transaction.

RAKWCT and its BoD will clearly retain complete and final control and responsibility of all key decisions, including but not limited to, those concerning the legal and financial structure for the Transaction; acceptance of
the offer from UltraTech, and the appointment of legal, accounting, tax and any other due diligence advisors, if required.

Please note that our scope does not include any valuation of business or any other assets, both tangible and intangible.

For clarity, the scope of work does not include the following elements: a legal, financial, commercial, technical and tax due diligence of the Company; preparation of a valuation or a fairness opinion, preparation of
budgets, forecasts or the business plan; current trading analysis; investing capital; provision of finance.

Neither KPMG, nor affiliated corporate bodies, nor its directors, shareholders, managers, partners or employees make any representation or warrant, expressly or by interpretation, as to the accuracy, reasonableness
or completeness of the information contained in the Presentation. All such parties and entities expressly disclaim any and all liability for, or based on or relating to any such information contained in, or errors in or
omissions from, this Presentation or based on or relating to the recipient’s use of this Presentation.

KPMG has undertaken a limited analysis of the current financial position of RAKWCT in relation to its financial performance. Information provided to KPMG has been mentioned in this report. We have not otherwise
undertaken an audit, investigation or enquiry into the affairs of RAKWCT and therefore express no opinion on the financial information contained in the Presentation.

In accordance with the requirements of auditing standards involving the use of an expert, the auditors of RAKWCT have the sole responsibility for its audit opinion expressed in respect of the financial reports. We do
not warrant or represent that the Report will provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the purpose of your auditors engagement, as in performing this engagement we may not have addressed matters in which
they may be interested or may be material to them. Accordingly, the auditors are not entitled to rely on this Presentation or the conclusions drawn.

We accept no responsibility or liability for any losses occasioned by any party as a result of our reliance on the financial and non-financial information that was provided to us or that we have obtained from third parties.
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Transaction overview

Conditions

Ultratech Cement Middle East Investment
Limited (“UltraTech” or “Acquiring
Party”) made a partial conditional cash
offer to the shareholders of Ras Al
Khaimah Co. for White Cement and
Construction Materials P.S.C.
(“RAKWCT”) to acquire 158,049,610
shared listed on the ADX, representing
31.6% of the ordinary shares of the
issued and paid-up share capital
(collectively, the “Offer”).

The Offer was made in accordance with
the terms and conditions set out in the
document prepared by UltraTech (the
“Offer Document”).

UltraTech notified the Board of Directors
of RAKWCT on 27 May 2024 (“Offer
Announcement Date”) of its intention to
submit the Offer.

Within 14 days of receiving the Offer
Document, the board of RAKWCT is
required to share a circular with the
RAKWCT shareholders with its
recommendation (“Offeree Circular”).

Under the terms of the Offer, RAKWCT
shareholders who will accept the Offer
(“RAKWCT Shareholders”) shall receive
AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT
share (the “Offer Price”);

The offer period is from May 28, 2024, to
June 24, 2024 (“Offer Period”).

If the number of RAKWCT shares offered
at the end of the Offer Period is more than
the number of shares set out in the Offer,
UltraTech will acquire from RAKWCT
Shareholders a number of shares pro-rata
to the total number of shares set out in
the Offer.

The Offer and Offer Price was determined
in accordance with the provisions of
Article 6 of the Decision of the Chairman
of SCA Board of Directors (18/R.M.) of
2017 concerning the rules of acquisition
and merger of public companies (the
“Takeover Code”).

UltraTech and RAKWCT (the “Parties”)
will also enter into an implementation
agreement, which will set out the rights
and obligations of the Parties.

UltraTech is a company incorporated and
registered in the Jebel Ali Free Zone
(“JAFZA”), United Arab Emirates, and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of UltraTech
Cement Limited, incorporated in India.

As at the Offer Announcement Date,
UltraTech has an ownership interest
representing 29.39% (being 147,000,000
shares) of the shares in RAKWCT.

Ultratech is looking to further benefit from
RAKWCT’s expertise in the
manufacturing of white cement by
expanding the business of RAKWCT
locally, regionally, and internationally, as
well as expanding the core business by
providing modern products such as wall
care putty and other new products.

The Offer is subject to the waive or
fulfilment of, inter alia, the following
conditions:

o Obtaining all required governmental,
corporate, commercial, regulatory and
statutory approvals

o RAKWCT furnishing SCA with all
require/requested information

o Dispatch of Offeree Circular by
RAKW(CT to its shareholders

o The RAKWCT shareholders passing
the requisite shareholder resolutions

o No material adverse changes occur
prior to the satisfaction of all
conditions.

Source: Management information, The Offer Document




Company overview

Company overview

Overview

Established in 1980 and listed on the Abu Dhabi Stock Exchange (“ADX”), RAKWCT manufactures and
distributes white cement, lime, and concrete blocks primarily across the UAE, wider GCC, and India. It
operates across 3 companies: Ras Al Khaimah White Cement (“RAK White Cement”), Ras Al Khaimah
Lime Co, (“Noora”) and Modern Block Factory (“MBF”).

Summary of brands

* One of the largest white cement producers globally
* Leading regional white cement exporter

RAK + 550k tonnes of white cement capacity annually White cement  White Portland
White Cement clinker cement

» Largest exporter of lime stone products to industrials
which caters to the local market
» 1,000 tonnes per day capacity (lime stone burning)

Noora Various lime stone products
(quick / hydrated / dolomitic lime)
» Leading force in the construction materials industry Interlocks
* Produces concrete blocks and interlocking paving stones
+ 100% automated press & robot-controlled curing chamber Concrete
MBF blocks
Kerbstone

Source: Company website, Audited Financial Statements, ADX
Note: (1) Sourced from ADX, as at 27 May 2024; (2) Sourced from Audited Financial Statements; (3) Per annum

KPMG

Ownership structure()

Q0o
UltraTech m
Ultratech Allied Investment Government of .
Partners Ras Al Khaimah Public
29.4% 26.9% 9.1% 34.6%

I
%, AED256m 97 ¢.3%

Revenue (FY23A) Revenue CAGR (FY21A-FY23A)

A A.0% =5 8.0%

Operating profit margin (FY23A) “  Net Profit margin (FY23A)

090k tonnes <~ Tktonnes/day

White cement capacity p.a.©® Lime stone burning capacity



Financial overview (1/2) - Revenue and profitability

RAKWCT - Income Statement

AEDmM FY21 FY22 FY23 Q123 Q124
Local sales 103.3 95.9 88.2 n/a n/a
Exports sales 136.5 151.7 167.7 n/a n/a
Revenue 239.8 247.7 255.9 66.7 63.0
Cost of sales (202.4) (213.5) (224.5) (60.8) (46.0)
Gross profit 374 341 314 5.8 17.0
Operating expenses (24.1) (22.0) (21.5) (5.4) (6.3)
Other income 9.6 0.9 0.3 0.1 0.0
Operating profit 22.9 13.0 10.2 0.5 10.7
Dividend income 6.0 6.1 3.2 0.4 -
Interest income 0.0 1.3 9.2 1.5 3.6
Other investment income 5.8 2.7 (1.7) (1.7) -
Investment income 11.8 10.2 10.7 0.1 3.6
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses - (0.7) - - -
Foreign exchange loss (0.3) (0.7) (0.3) (0.0) (0.0)
Finance cost (1.6) (0.8) - - -
Profit before tax 32.9 211 20.5 0.6 14.3
Income tax expense - - - - (1.2)
Net Profit 329 211 20.5 0.6 13.1
KPls

Revenue growth (%) 8.4% 33% 3.3% n/a n/a
Gross margin (%) 15.6% 13.8% 12.3% 8.8% 27.0%
Operating profit margin (%) 9.5% 53% 4.0% 0.8% 16.9%
Net Profit margin (%) 13.7% 8.5% 8.0% 0.9% 20.8%

Source: Company website, S&P Capital 1Q, Audited Financial Statements
Note: (1) Includes Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss, Realized gain on sale of investments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss, and Investment management fee

KPMG

Historical performance

Revenue grew at a CAGR c. 3% between FY21A-FY23A (“Historical Period”) mainly driven by the
growth in export sales, which generated AED 168m (FY23A), representing c. 65% of revenue.

Gross margin declined from 15.6% in FY21A to 12.3% in FY23A mainly due to an increase in
direct material costs and direct utility costs.

Operating expenses mainly consist of staff, marketing, office, and legal expenses. Operating
expenses declined at a CAGR of 5.6% over the Historical Period, as a result of lower legal fees
and marketing expenses.

Operating profit margin declined from 9.5% in FY21A to 4.0% in FY23A, in line with the decline in
gross profit, coupled with a decrease in other income attributable to a one-time reversal of liability
of AED 9.0m in FY21A.

Investment income consists of dividend income received from investments in quoted securities,
interest income from bank deposits, and others(.

Net profit margin declined from 13.7% in FY21A to 8.0% in FY23A, in line with the decline in
operating profit margins.

Current trading

.

RAKWCT generated AED 63.0m of revenue for the period ending 31 March 2024 (“Q1 24”),
representing a 5.4% decline (AED 66.7m) compared to revenue generated for the period ending
31 March 2023 (“Q1 23").

Gross profit increased from AED 5.8m in Q1 23 to AED 17.0m in Q1 24, primarily driven by a
decline in cost of sales.

Operating profit increased from AED 0.5m in Q1 23 to AED 10.7m in Q1 24, primarily driven by
the increase in gross profits across the period.



Financial overview (2/2) - Balance sheet position

RAKWOCT - Balance Sheet Overview of Balance Sheet

AEDm . Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Mar-24 + Total non-current assets primarily consist of plant, property, and equipment and
Property, plant, and equipment 4924 4661 4402 4352 investments at FVTOCI™M, which mainly relate to investments in UAE-quoted shares.
Investments at FVTOCI 174.0 107.3 59.7 56.3
Total non-current assets 666.4 573.4 499.9 491.5 * Total current assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents, inventories, and trade
and other receivables.
Inventories 81.2 78.5 79.9 76.1 . . .
Trade and other receivables 46.0 51.7 51.8 57.0 » Cash and cash equivalents reached c. AED 270m in Mar-24, out of which c. AED
Investments at FVTPL® 42.0 315 - d 246m relate to term deposits with maturity of 3+ months.
Cash and cash equivalents 127.5 147 .1 251.3 269.7 . tori inl ist of t K-i it d finished
Total current assets 206.7 308.8 382.9 402.8 nventories mainly consist of spare parts, work-in-progress items, and finishe
products. Inventory days averaged 162 days® over the Historical Period.
Total assets 963.1 8822 8828  894.3 + Trade and other receivables mainly consist of trade receivables, dues from related
End of service benefits 93 10.5 10.2 10.3 gartlt(e4s), refur;:at')_:g ?eposllt;, a_m(cji other receivables. Receivable days averaged 62
Bank borrowings 50.5 _ _ ] ays™ over the Historical Period.
Deferred tax liability - - - 0.1 + Current liabilities primarily consist of trade and other payables, including trade
Total non-current liabilities 59.8 10.5 10.2 10.3 payables, accrued expenses and advances, and dividends payable. Payable days
3) L .
Bank borrowings 295 i i | averaged 56 days'®) over the Historical Period.
Income tax liability - - - 1.2
Trade and other payables 87.0 89.5 76.4 76.9
Total current liabilities 109.5 89.5 76.4 781
Total liabilties 169.3 100.0 86.6 88.4
Share capital 500.2 500.2 500.2 500.2
Statutory reserve 116.0 118.1 120.2 120.2
Cummulative changes in FVTOCI (50.7) (38.9) (40.3) (43.8)
Retained earnings 228.4 202.8 216.2 229.4
Equity 793.8 782.2 796.2 805.9
Liabilities & Equity 963.1 882.2 882.8 894.3

Source: Company website, S&P Capital 1Q, Audited Financial Statements
Note: (1) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income; (2) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss; (3) Based on trade payables and cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization; (4) Based on net trade receivables, which include trade receivables less allowances for
expected credit losses
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Offer price

Summary of Article 6 %

According to Article 6 of the Takeover
Code, the Offer Price may not be lower
than the highest of the following:

» Market price on the first day of the Offer
(28 May 2024)

» Closing price prior to the first day of offer
Commencement (27 May 2024)

» Average price during the 3 months
preceding the start of the offer

» Highest price paid by the acquiring party
in the last 12 months prior to the offer

Comparison of Offer Price to regulatory price benchmarks, set out in Article 6 of the Takeover Code

Price per share (AED)

1.20

1.05

1.00

0.95

0.90

Offer Price

A

Market price
(28 May 2024)

1.09
1.03
A
Closing price vWAP
(27 May 2024) (Last 90 trading days)

Regulatory threshold

Max price by Ultratech
(Last 12 months)

Regulatory price benchmarks

v

Based on our analysis of the Offer Price, Ultratech’s Offer is higher than the regulatory threshold and is in compliance with Article 6 of the Takeover Code

Source: ADX, Securities and Commaodities Authority, KPMG analysis

Note: (1) Volume weighted average price based on the last 90 trading days (i.e. 10 October 2023 and 27 May 2024), using volume and opening price data from ADX

KPMG




Process timeline and next steps

gl (&

27 May 2024 28 May 2024

Offer announcement and dispatch of Offer opening date
Ultratech Offer document RAKWCT

$

9 June 2024("

RAKWCT Board to dispatch to shareholders the RAKWCT
Offeree Circular (expected to contain the board
recommendation to shareholders to accept the Offer)

o]

25 June 2024

Offer results announcement

24 June 2024
Offer closing date (2:00 pm)

Source: Management information, The Offer Document
Note: (1) Within 14 days of receiving the Offer Document

KPMG

G

18 July 2024

Settlement of the consideration due to
accepting RAKWCT shareholders
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To the Independent Board Members of Ras Al Khaimah Company for White Cement and
Construction Materials (PSC) Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah United Arab Emirates

Date: June 6, 2024

Greetings,

Legal Recommendation to the Independent Board Members of Ras Al Khaimah Company
for White Cement and Construction Materials (PSC) (the "Company")

With reference to the aforementioned subject and in our capacity as the legal advisor to the
company, we are honored to present to you our legal recommendation regarding the acquisition
process and the offer made by UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited ("UltraTech")
to acquire 31.6% of the company's total share capital, as follows:

1. Procedures Followed

The Company has adhered to all necessary procedures concerning the acquisition offer
received from UltraTech to acquire 31.6% of the company's total share capital. The
Company has complied with all the legal procedures stipulated in the Board of Directors'
Resolution of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. 18/R.M of 2017 regarding the
rules of acquisition and merger of public joint stock companies, as well as the
Administrative Resolution No. 62/R.T of 2017 concerning the technical requirements for
the acquisition and merger system of public joint stock companies.

2. Determination of the Offer Price

The offer price was determined in accordance with Article 6 of the Board of Directors'
Resolution of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. 18/R.M of 2017. Therefore,
the determination of the acquisition price was made in accordance with the applicable
regulations and resolutions in this regard.

3. Approvals Obtained

For the purposes of the acquisition process, the necessary approvals regarding the
acquisition offer submitted by UltraTech have been obtained, particularly the approval of
the following authorities:

a. Securities and Commodities Authority

b. Ministry of Economy

c. Department of Economic Development in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah
d. Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange



This is our recommendation accordingly.

Ahmed Ibrahim
Managing Partner
Ibrahim & Partners Law Firm
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Consolidated statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020

AED AED

Revenue 14 239,809,046 221,192,660
Cost of sales (202,443,235) (183,938,677)
Gross profit 37,365,811 37,253,983
Selling, general and administrative expenses 16 (24,067,641) (23,399,500)
Other income 18 9,580,465 513,281
Operating profit 22,878,635 14,367,764
Investment income 17 11,826,288 1,187,722
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (259,588) 97,756
Finance costs (1,573,576) (2,963,394)
Profit for the year 32,871,759 12,689,848
Basic and diluted earnings per share 19 0.07 0.03

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
AED AED

Profit for the year 32,871,759 12,689,848
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be teclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of investments carried at
FVTOCI 5 18,419,390 (7,758,508)
Gain/(loss) in fair value on disposal of
investments carried at FVOCI 12,854,664 (1,462,517)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year 31,274,054 (9,221,025)
Total comprehensive income for the year 64,145,813 3,468,823

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
9
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Reversal of liability

Provision for expected credit losses

Provision for employees’ end of setvice benefits
Dividend income

Interest income

(Gain)/loss on disposal of investments carried at FVTPL
Finance costs

Unrealized (gain)/loss on investments carried at FVTPL
Investment management fee

Cash flows before changes in working capital
Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Employees” end of service benefits paid
Board of Directors' Remuneration paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Putchase of property, plant and equipment
Dividend received

Purchase of investments carried at FVTOCI
Purchase of investments carried at FVIPL
Disposal of investments catried at FVTOCI
Disposal of investments cartied at FVTPL
Interest received

Investment management fee paid

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of bank borrowings

Finance costs paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

11

11
17
17
17
12

17

11
20

17

17
17

12

2021 2020
AED AED
32,871,759 12,689,848
33,486,259 32,510,106
- (410,436)
- 165,000
915,968 875,999
(5,982,416) (8,004,563)
(23,090) (117,062)
(6,366,943) 2,220,488
1,573,576 2,963,394
(1,254,167) 4,180,735
1,800,328 532,680
57,021,274 47,606,189
6,099,866 22,635,371
27,185,402 (22,309,970)
(9,171,560) (714,095)
81,134,982 47,217,495
(511,625) (901,341)
(1,140,000) (1,200,000
79,483,357 45,116,154
(11,986,967) (7,340,187)
5,982,416 8,004,563
(36,962,776) (92,458,827)
(65,559,554) (22,812,608)
105,922,241 37,217,223
56,394,361 31,132,245
23,090 117,062
(1,800,328) (532,680)
52,012,483  (46,673,209)
(22,500,000) (22,500,000)
(1,550,053) (3,298,688)
(23,074,659) (1,001,758)
(47,124,712) (26,800,446)
84,371,128  (28,357,501)
43,139,406 71,496,907
127,510,534 43,139,406

The accompanying notes from 1 to 29 form an integral patt of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

INotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. General information

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C. (the "Company") is incorporated as a public
shareholding company by Emiti dectee number 13/81 dated 3 October 1981 issued by His Highness, The Ruler of
Ras Al Khaimah. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 1492, Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab
Emirates.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and supply of white
cement, lime products, cement products and investing, establishing and managing similar activities.

The “Group” comprises of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Matetials P.S.C. and its
subsidiaries.

Details of Company’s subsidiaties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 ate as follows:

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary ownership Place of incotporation  Principal activities

Modern Block Factory 100% Ras Al Khaimah, UAE. Manufacturing of concrete blocks,
Establishment interlock tiles and cement products.
Ras Al Khaimah Lime Co. 100% Ras Al Khaimah, UAE. Manufacturing of lime products.
Noora LLC

Federal Law By Decree No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law”) was issued on
September 20, 2021 with an effective date of January 2, 2022, and will entirely replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on
Commercial Companies, as amended. The Group has twelve months from the effective date to comply with the
provisions of the New Companies Law.”

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards

21 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are
effective in 2021

Following relevant new amendments to existing standards were issued by the IASB, which are effective for the
annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2021, and have been adopted by the Group:

® Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

This amendment did not have a significant impact on these consolidated financial statements. and therefore, the
disclosures have not been made.

On May 28, 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases The
amendment provides relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions atising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not
to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way
it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment was
intended to apply until June 30, 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, on March 31, 2021,
the TASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to June 30, 2022. The amendment applies to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

12



Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards (continued)

2.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early by the Group
Other standards, amendments and interpretations that atre not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the
Group include:
® References to the Conceptual Framework
® Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
®  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
®  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IAS
41)
® (lassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)
® Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities from a Single Transaction

These standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application and therefore no disclosures have been made.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented.

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepated in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and IFRS interpretations committee (“IFRS IC”) applicable to Group companies
reporting under IFRS and applicable requirements of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 as amended.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement at
fair value of financial instruments. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an otdetly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pticing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosute purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such basis, and measurements that have some similarities to fait value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in TAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categotised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurements in its entitrety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, with a distinction

based on expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and
more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C. and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Group:

*  has power over the investee;
= is exposed, or has rights, to vatiable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or mote of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee ate sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

*  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holdets or other parties;

*  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and citcumstances that indicate that the Group has, ot does not have, the curtent ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of duting the
year are included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiaty.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaties to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Allintragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

34 Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured and presented in United Arab Emirates Dithams
(‘AED’), being the cutrency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional
cutrency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in AED, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation cutrency.

Foreign cutrency transactions and balances

Foreign cutrency transactions ate translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions ot valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at yeat-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incotne,
except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Balances and transactions denominated in US dollars (“USD”) have been translated into the presentation currency at
a fixed rate as the exchange rate of AED to USD has been pegged.

14



Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

35 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impaitment
losses.

Land is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Assets under construction is stated at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cartying amount are recognized as a separate asset, as apptoptiate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit or loss in the
petiod in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and capital work in progress, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of propetty, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit or loss.
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method based on the anticipated useful lives, as follows:

Class of asset Life (years)
Buildings and building improvements 5-20
Plant and machinery 5-30
Tools, equipment, furniture and fixture 10-15
Vehicles 5-10

3.6 Financial instrurnents

3.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss), and
*  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measutes a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments (continued)
3.6.2 Cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables (excluding advances to suppliers and prepayments) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short- term receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial,

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument of, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all
the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit ot loss at initial recognition.

Trade and other receivables (excluding advances to suppliers and prepayments). Trade receivables are amounts due
from customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they ate recognised at fair value. Other receivables generally atise
from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group. Collatetal is not normally obtained for other
receivables,

3.6.3 Equity instruments at FVTOCI

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other gains/ (losses) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI ate not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments (continued)

3.63 Equity instruments at FVT'OCI (continued)

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

3.6.4 Debtinstruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categoties into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss atising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as sepatate line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, ate measured at FVOCIL Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.

When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comptehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit ot loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains / (losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

* FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain ot
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/ (losses) in the period in which it arises.

3.6.5 Financial assets at FVIPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

() assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

(ii) assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect
and sell; or

(iii) assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value option: A financial instrument with a reliably measurable fair value can be designated as FVIPL (the fair
value option) on its initial recognition even if the financial instrument was not acquired or incurred principally for the
putpose of selling ot repurchasing. The fair value option can be used for financial assets if it eliminates ot significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising related gains and losses on a different basis (an “accounting mismatch”).

3.6.6 Reclassificatdons

If the business model undetr which the Group holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement requitements related to the new category apply prospectively from
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying the
Group’s financial assets. During the cutrent financial year and previous accounting period, there was no change in
the business model under which the Group holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments (continued)

3.6.7 Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

*  Cash and cash equivalents; and
* Trade and other receivables.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets (which are considered separately
below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

*  12-month ECL, i.e. loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, (referred

to as Stage 1); or

* full lifetime ECL, ie. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

* A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowance for cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables at an
amount equal to life time ECLs.

Loss allowance for financial investments measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross cartying amount of
assets. For debt securities at FVT'OCI, the loss allowance is recognised in the OCI, instead of reducing the carrying
amount of the asset.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue costs or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
Group’s histotical expetience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

For certain categories of financial asset, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

Impairment losses related to cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of investment.

3.6.8 Measurement of ECL

The Group employs statistical models for ECL calculations. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
For measuring ECL under IFRS 9, the key input would be the term structure of the following variables:

* probability of default (PD);
* loss given default (LGD); and
*  exposure at default (EAD).

These parametets will be detived from the Group’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data.
They will be adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Financial instruments (continued)

3.6.9 Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the tisks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost ot measured at FVTPL, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain ot loss previously accumulated
in the cumulative changes in fair value of securities reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to
retained earnings.

3.6.10 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated financial statements

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

* for financial assets measured at amortised cost (trade and other receivables (excluding advances to suppliets and
prepayments) and cash and cash equivalents): as a deduction from the gross catrying amount of the assets;

* for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as patt of the
revaluation amount in revaluation reserve and recognised in other comprehensive income.

3.7 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group

3.71 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangement.

3.7.2 Financial liabilities

Liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other liabilities, as appropriate.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount, If the due date
of the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted.

3.7.3 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group ate recorded at the proceeds received, net of ditect issue costs.
3.7.4 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled

or they expire.

3.7.5 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Group’s shareholders.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.8 Inventories

Inventoties are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Spate parts and other inventories cost comptises of their purchase price.

Raw materials cost comprises of purchase cost and other costs incurred in bringing the raw matetial to their present
location and condition. Products in process cost comprises raw materials, wages and industtial costs that contribute
in transforming raw materials into products in process. Finished goods cost comptises raw materials, wages and
industtial costs that contribute in transforming raw materials into finished products. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventoties to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories ate recognised as an expense in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories, atising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

39 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may
still be uncertain. A present obligation atises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted
from past events. '

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present
obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. In those cases
where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered improbable ot
remote, no liability is recognised.

310  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows ate discounted to their present value using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples ot other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group makes an estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impaitment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the catrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortisation, had no impaitment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.11  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are items, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise
cash on hand and current accounts with bank and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or
less, less bank overdrafts.

3.12  Share capital and reserves
Share capital represents the nominal value of shates that have been issued. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Statutory reserve is required to be created by UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 as amended as described in note 10.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period tetained profits.

313  Employee benefits
3.13.1 Defined contribution plan

U.A.E. national employees of the Group are members of the Government-managed retirement pension and social
security benefit scheme pursuant to U.A.E. labour law no. 7 of 1999. The Group is requited to contribute 12.5% of
the “contribution calculation salary” of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retitement pension and social secutity scheme is to
make the specified conttibutions. The contributions ate charged to profit or loss.

3.13.2 Annual leave and leave passage

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave passage as a result
of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the yeat.

3.13.3 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service indemnity due to non-U.A.E. national employees in
accordance with the U.A.E. Labour Law and is based on cutrent remuneration and theit period of service at the end
of the reporting petiod.

The accrual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed as a current liability, while the provision relating to
end of service indemnity is disclosed as a non-current liability.

3.14  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the botrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defet
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting petiod.

Borrowing costs incutred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred within
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.17  Dividend and interest income (continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futute cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount.

3.18 Value added tax

Effective 1 January 2018, the Group recognises value added tax (“VAT”) in line with the rules and regulations set out
in the VAT law set out by the Federal Tax Authority of the Government of United Arab Emirates (“UAE”). The law
requires that all sales, supplies and consumptions within UAE eligible to 5% VAT. The sales, supplies and
consumptions outside the UAE or to designated areas, those are subject to zero percent VAT,

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except where the VAT incurred
on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authorities, in which case the VAT is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of assets or as part of the expensed item as applicable.

3.19  Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

*  The profit attributable to shareholders of the Group, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinaty

shares.
* by the weighted average number of otdinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shates issued duting the year and excluding treasury shares if any.

3.20  Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services and has
reportable segments as follows:

a) Manufacturing of white cement, lime products, cement products.
b) Investments in marketable equity securities.

There are no sales between segments during the year.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net profit ot loss and is measured
consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

3.21  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

When prepating the financial statements management undertakes a number of judgments, estimates and assumptions about
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The actual results may differ from the judgments,
estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal the estimated results.

Information about significant judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition
and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below.

(a) Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) is a significant estimate that involves determination methodology,
models and data inputs. The following components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition of default,
SICR, probability of default (“PD”), exposute at default (‘EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), as well as models
of macro-economic scenatios. The Group tegulatly reviews and validates the models and inputs to the models to
reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual credit loss experience.

The expected loss rates ate based on aging of receivables. The historical loss rates are adjusted for to reflect forward-
looking information on mactoeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.21  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventoties

Inventoties are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its
net realizable value, if required, are made at the product level for estimated excess, obsolescence or impaired balances.
Factors influencing these adjustments include changes in demand, technological changes, physical deterioration and
quality issues. Based on the factors, management has identified inventory items as slow and non-moving to calculate
the allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories. Revisions to the allowance for slow moving inventories would
be required if the outcome of these indicative factors differ from the estimates.

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management reviews the residual values and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each

annual reporting petiod in accordance with TAS 16. Management determined that current year expectations do not
differ from previous estimates based on its review.

(d) Classification of investments

Management designates at the time of acquisition of securities whether these should be classified as at FVTOCI or
FVTPL. In judging whether investments in securities are as at FVTOCI or FVTPL, management has considered the
detailed criteria for determination of such classification as set out IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Management is
satisfied that its investments in securities are appropriately classified.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. Investments in securities

@) Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) comptise:

Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise in this category. These are strategic investments, and the group considers this classification to be more

relevant.
2021 2020
AED AED
Quoted — at fair value:
In the UAE. 112,399,840 129,018,646
In othet GCC countries 61,574,405 82,641,010
173,974,245 211,659,656
Movement in investments cartied at FVTOCI were as follows:
2021 2020
AED AED
Fair value at the beginning of the year 211,659,656 165,639,077
Purchased during the year 36,962,776 92,458,827
Disposal during the year (93,067,577) (38,679,740)
Increase /(decrease) in fair value of investments at FVTOCI 18,419,390 (7,758,508)
173,974,245 211,659,656
(ii) Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVITPL)
The group classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):
L equity investments that are held for trading, and
. equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCIL
2021 2020
AED AED
Quoted — at fair value:
In the UAE. 27,515,804 23,779,065
In other GCC countries 14,435,471 1,385,907
41,951,275 25,164,972
Movement in investments carried at FVTPL wete as follows:
2021 2020
AED AED
Fair value at the beginning of the year 25,164,972 39,885,832
Purchased during the year 65,559,554 22,812,608
Disposal during the year (50,027,418) (33,352,733)
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments carried at FVIPL 1,254,167 (4,180,735)
41,951,275 25,164,972
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. Investments in securities (continued)

During the year, the Group putchased and invested in shares amounting to AED 102,522,330 (2020: AED
115,271,435).

Investment in securities with a fait value of AED 104,281,301 (2020: AED 141,705,946) are pledged to the bank against
credit facilities granted to the Group (Note 12).

6. Inventories

2021 2020

AED AED

Finished goods 14,886,776 18,094,731

Raw materials 5,101,725 6,804,983

Work in progress 51,135,827 57,905,668

Bags, fuel, and lubricant 10,479,446 7,305,578

81,603,774 90,110,960

Spare parts 30,986,022 28,576,490
Allowance for slow-moving/write down inventory (17,886,397) (17,886,397)

Goods in transit 1,675 3,887

94,705,074 100,804,940

The amount of materials consumed included in cost of sales during the year was AED 66,944,205
(2020: AED 57,269,097).

7. Trade and other receivables

2021 2020
AED AED
Financial assets

Trade receivables 43,843,157 66,380,017
Less: provision for expected credit losses (2,948,434) (2,948,434)
40,894,723 63,431,583
Other receivables 1,605,968 105,968
42,500,691 63,537,551

Non-financial assets
Advance to suppliers 1,216,224 7,183,909
Prepaid expenses 1,547,055 1,727,912
2,763,279 8,911,821
45,263,970 72,449,372

Before accepting new customets, the Group generally obtains bank guarantees ot letter of credit from the potential
customers. Of the total trade and other receivables balance at the end of the year, AED 18.79 million representing
43.60% of the trade receivables (2020: AED 32 million representing 48.20% of the trade receivables) are due from the
Group’s 5 customers (2020: 5 major customers).

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to life-time ECL. The expected credit
losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default expetience of the debtor
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. Trade and other receivables (continued)

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables in the comparative periods have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment. The impaired trade receivables are mostly due from customers in the business-to-business market that are
experiencing financial difficultes.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when thete is informaton indicating that the debtor is in sevete financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptey proceedings etc.

The following table shows the movement in loss allowance that has been recognised for trade receivables.

2021 2020

AED AED

At 1 January 2,948,434 2,783,434
Provision during the year ‘ - 165,000
At 31 December 2,948,434 2,948,434

Analysis of trade receivables as set out below:

2021 2020

AED AED
Secured against unconditional bank guarantees 11,999,860 12,842,714
Secured against letter of credit 15,283,996 33,304,952
Open credit 16,559,301 20,232,351
43,843,157 66,380,017

The average credit period on sales of goods is 62 days. No interest is charged on outstanding receivables.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
AED AED
Cash on hand 175,853 68,376
Portfolio account 39,816,344 4,879,327
39,992,197 4947703
Bank balances:

Current accounts 11,188,969 2,960,745
Call deposits 12,997,482 4,156,208
Fixed deposits 63,331,386 31,074,750
87,518,337 38,191,703
Cash and cash equivalents 127,510,534 43,139,406

By geographical area:
In the UAE. 114,078,013 39,331,223
In other GCC countries 13,432,521 3,808,183
127,510,534 43,139,406

Bank balances are held with local and international branch of reputable banks. Management views these banks as
having a sound performance history and satisfactory credit ratings (Note 24.7).

The average interest rates for the bank deposits during the year were 0.1% (2020: 0.1% per annum).

29



Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

9. Share capital

2021 2020
AED AED
Issued and fully paid 500,157,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each 500,157,000 500,157,000

10. Reserves
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the U.A.E. Federal Commetcial Companies Law Number (2) of 2015 as amended and the
Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for each year is transferred to the statutory reserve. The
transfer to statutory reserve may be suspended when it reaches 50% of the paid-up shate capital. During the year
ended December 31, 2021, the Group has transferred AED 3,287,176 to statutory reserve (2020: AED 1,268,985).

This reserve is not available for distribution except in circumstances stipulated by the law. The Group adjusts the
statutory reserve to transfer 10% of net profit.

Voluntary reserve

Appropriations to the voluntary reserve account tepresents appropriation of 10% of the profit for each yeat. The
transfer to voluntary reserve may be suspended by the ordinary general assembly at the recommendation of the
Board of Directors or when it reaches 20% of the Group’s paid-up share capital. As at December 31,2018, voluntary
reserve balance reached 20% of the Group's paid-up share capital. At the recommendation of the Board of
Directors, an ordinary general assembly meeting was held on 20 Apzil 2019 and it was decided to suspend the
transfer to voluntary reserve as the total of the reserve has reached 20% of the Group’s paid-up share capital. So,
no further transfer will be made to the reserve and it has been transferred to retained earnings during 2020 according
to a resolution passed in general assembly meeting.

Statutory resetve Voluntary reserve Total

AED AED AED

As at January 1, 2020 111,437,714 100,031,400 211,469,114
Transferred to statutory reserve 1,268,985 - 1,268,985
Transferred to retained earnings - (100,031,400) {100,031,400)
As at December 31, 2020 112,706,699 - 112,706,699
Transferred to statutory reserve 3,287,176 - 3,287,176
As at December 31, 2021 115,993,875 - 115,993,875

11. Employees’ end of service benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits include gratuity and movement is as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED

At January 1, 8,856,815 9,292,593

Charge for the year 915,968 875,999

Reversals during the year - (410,436)
Payments during the year (511,625) (901,341)

Balance at December 31, 9,261,158 8,856,815
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. Bank borrowings

Balance at January 1
Repayment during the year

Balance as at December 31

Non-current

Current

Finance costs on bank borrowings

2021 2020

AED AED
95,511,745 118,011,745
(22,500,000) (22,500,000)
73,011,745 95,511,745
50,511,745 73,261,798
22,500,000 22,249,947
73,011,745 95,511,745
(1,573,576) (2,963,394)

In addition, to the above the Group has entered into a credit facility agreement of bank overdraft, short term loan

and letter of credit amounting to AED Nil (2020: AED 73 million).

Propetty, plant and equipment items having a carrying amount of AED 110 million (2020: AED 110 million) are
pledged to a bank against above facilities granted by the bank until the end of facilities term or full settlement of
the above credit facilities (note 4). In addition, bank borrowings are secured by a pledge over investments in
securities with a fair value of AED 104,281,301 (2020: AED 141,705,946). Bank botrowings catried an interest rate

in the range of 1.88% to 2 % per annum (2020: 2% to 3.7% per annum).

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing facilities during the year 2021 and 2020, see

note 23 for details.

13. Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

Non-financial liability
Advances from customers

14. Revenue

Revenue recognised at point in time:

Local sales
Export sales

2021 2020
AED AED
29,055,785 32,764,084
66,218,045 71,729,733
95,273,830 104,493,817
4,494,978 2,489,837
99,768,808 106,983,654
2021 2020

AED AED
102,361,891 99,163,124
137,447,155 122,029,536
239,809,046 221,192,660
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

15. Staff costs

2021 2020
. AED AED
Salaries and wages 29,376,179 27,207,753
Other benefits 2,617,811 2,950,203
End of setvice benefits 915,968 875,999
32,909,958 31,033,955
Staff cost is allocated as follows:
Production cost 20,688,853 19,370,942
Selling, general and administrative expenses 12,221,105 11,663,013
32,909,958 31,033,955
16. Selling, general and administrative expenses
2021 2020
AED AED
Payroll and related expenses 12,221,105 11,663,013
Legal and professional fees 4,782,767 5,097,862
Marketing 3,090,440 2,912,793
Office expenses 1,106,559 1,305,057
Depreciation of property, plant and equiptment (note 4) 451,712 464,617
Bank charges 786,104 554,893
Other expenses 1,628,954 1,401,265
24,067,641 23,399,500
17. Investment income
2021 2020
AED AED
Dividends income 5,982,416 8,004,563
Unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investments carried at
FVTPL 1,254,167 (4,180,735)
Realised gain/(loss) on sale of investments catried at FVIPL 6,366,943 (2,220,488)
Interest income 23,090 117,062
Investment management fees (1,800,328) (532,680)
11,826,288 1,187,722
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

18. Other income

2021 2020

AED AED

Gain on reversal of liability (%) 9,014,618 410,436
Others 565,847 102,845
9,580,465 513,281

*Gain of AED 9,000,000 was due to the reversal of provision in regatds to a favorable legal case outcome that
occurred during the year.

19. Basic earnings per share

2021 2020
Profit for the year (AED) 32,871,759 12,689,848
Number of shatres 500,157,000 500,157,000
Basic earnings per share (AED) 0.07 0.03

Basic earnings pet share has been calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the number of shates outstanding
at the end of the reporting yeat.

There were no potentially dilutive shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

20. Related party

The Group in the normal course of business carries on transactions with other enterprises that fall within the
definition of related parties. Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the party are subject to common control ot significant influence. Transactions with related
parties are measured at amount agreed to by both the parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no balances ot transactions with related parties other than
the below disclosed transactions:

2021 2020

AED AED

Board of Directors’ remuneration 1,140,000 1,200,000
Short tetm benefits 424,996 471,096

21. Dividends

At the annual general meeting held on 12 April 2021, the Shareholders approved cash dividends of 5% from share
capital amounting to AED 25.01 million to the shareholders in respect for the year ended 31 December 2020.
They have also approved the Boatd of Ditectors’ temuneration fot an amount of AED 1.14 million.

At the annual general meeting held on 21 June 2020, the Sharcholders did not approve any cash dividend to the
shareholders in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and it has approved the Board of Directors’
remuneration by an amount of AED 1.2 million.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

22, Commitments and contingent liabilities

2021 2020
AED AED
Letters of guarantee 2,688,299 66,724

23. Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group entities will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debts and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, bank balances and cash and equity, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained eatnings.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with capital. The Group does not have a formalised optimal target capital
structure or target ratios in connection with its capital tisk management objective.

As at 31 December, the gearing ratios of the Group was as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED

Bank borrowings (Note: 12) 73,011,745 95,511,745
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note: 8) (127,510,534) (43,139,406)

Net debt (54,498,789) 52,372,339

Total equity 793,776,103 755,778,140

Total 739,277,314 808,150,479

Gearing ratio 7.4% 6.5%

Under the terms of the borrowing facilities, the Group is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

*  The tangible net worth must not, at any time, be less than AED 650 million,
. The total debt to net worth ratio (gearing) must not, in respect of any relevant petiod, be more than 1:1; and
*  Cutrent ratio must not, in respect of any relevant period, be less than 1:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting year.

24. Financial instruments

The Group is potentially exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets and financial liabilities. In
particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the
obligations atising from its investment contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit tisk and liquidity risk.

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements. The tisks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its investments
and financial liabilides are interest rate risk and equity price tisk.
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24, Financial instruments (continued)

241  Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the ctiteria for tecognition, the basis
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

242  Categories of financial instruments
2021 2020
AED AED
Financial assets
At amortised cost
Trade and other receivables (Note 7) 42,500,691 63,537,551
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8) 127,510,534 43,139,406
170,011,225 106,676,957
At fair value
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) (Note 5) 173,974,245 211,659,656
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(Note 5) 41,951,275 25,164,972
215,925,520 236,824,628
385,936,745 343,501,585
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Bank borrowing (Note 12) 73,011,745 95,511,745
Trade and other payables (Note 13) 95,273,830 104,493,817
168,285,575 200,005,562

24.3 Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primatily to the financial risks of changes in foteign currency exchange rates, cash

flow and fair value interest rates and equity price risks.

Market risk exposutes are measured using sensitivity analysis.

244  Foreign currency risk management

Majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated in AED or in currencies AED is pegged to. Howevet, the
Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in other foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise.

Liabilities Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
AED AED AED AED
Kuwaiti Dinar - - 79,363,795 84,709,033
Euro 790,793 104,610 22,024 27,348
JPY - 11,894 - -
QAR - - 2,229,677 1,864,663
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24, Financial instruments (continued)

24.5  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to Kuwaiti Dinar, Saudi Riyal and Qatari Riyal. Based on the sensitivity analysis to a
10% increase or decrease in the AED against Kuwaiti Dinar, Saudi Riyal and Qatari Riyal the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and equity as of and 31 December 2021 would have increased or decreased by
approximately AED 8.08 million (2020: AED 8.65 million). The Group has no material exposure against Euro and
Japanese Yen. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign curtency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foteign curtency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.

24.6 Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to interest rate tisk is limited to fixed deposits and call deposits with banks at floating interest
rates and borrowings from banks at floating rates of interest linked to EIBOR. At 31 December 2021, bank fixed
and call deposits carried an interest rate in the range of 0.10% (2020: 0.10% per annum) and bank loans carried an
interest rate in the range of 1.88% to 2% per annum (2020: 2% to 3.7% per annum).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower throughout the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and equity as at 31 December 2021 would have
decreased/increased by approximately AED 0.39 million (2020: decrease/increase by AED 0.54 million).

24.7  Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk-thata counter-party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
ate continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management annually.

Trade receivables consist of a number of customers. On-going credit evaluation is petformed on the financial

condition of trade receivables. Further details of credit risks on trade and other receivables and short-term deposits
are disclosed in Notes 7 and 8.

The credit risk associated with the Group's trade receivables (note 7) is considered limited as the Group holds
receivables amounting to AED 27.28 million (2020: AED 46.1 million) fully coveted by unconditional bank
guarantees and letters of credit to secure the collectability of these trade receivables.

Other financial assets represent investments catried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), where all their investments are listed equity
securities as at 31 December 2021 (Note 24.10).

Credit risk with respect to concentration of trade receivables by geographical area is as follows:

2021 2020

AED AED

United Arab Emirates 22,229,033 24,938,430
Other Gulf Cooperation Council countties 6,110,525 7,067,014
Other countries 15,503,599 34,374,573
43,843,157 66,380,017

For banks and financial institutions, bank ratings ate reviewed on an annual basis. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these counterpatties.
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24. Financial instruments (continued)

24,7  Credit risk management (continued)

The table below shows the balance and Moody’s credit rating of the bank with which balances are maintained by
the Group at the reporting date.

Rating 2021 2020

AED AED

Bank 1 Baal 79,334,767 36,623,880
Bank 2 Al 3,957,711 555,521
Bank 3 A3 3,999,326 438,049
Bank 4 Aa3 226,533 574,253
87,518,337 38,191,703

The table above excludes portfolio accounts amounting to AED 39,816,344 (2020: AED 4,879,327) and cash on
hand amounting to AED 175,853 (2020: AED 68,376) which ate unrated.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposute to credit tisks.

248  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk also referred to as funding risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds
to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. The Group’s liquidity risk is the availability of funds to cover future
commitments. The Group manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in patticular
its cash resources and trade receivables.

The Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities have contractual maturities (including interest payments where
applicable) as summarised below:

Less than Between

1year 1-5 years Total
AED AED AED

2021
Borrowings 22,934,765 51,487,777 74,422,542
Trade and other payables (note 13) 95,273,830 - 95,273,830
118,208,595 51,487,777 169,696,372

2020
Borrowing 22,679,880 74,677,427 97,357,307
Trade and other payables (note 13) 104,493,817 - 104,493,817
127,173,697 74,677,427 201,851,124

249  Equity price risk

The group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
(note 5) or at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) (note 5). To manage its price tisk arising from investments
in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio.

Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the group. The majority of the group’s
equity investments are publicly traded.
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24. Financial instruments (continued)

24.9  Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At the reporting date if the equity prices are 20% higher/ lower as per the assumptions mentioned below and all
the other variables were held constant, the Group’s consolidated statements of income and comptehensive income
would have increased/decreased by AED 8.34 million and by AED 34.80 million, respectively (2020: AED 5 million
and by AED 42.3 million, respectively).

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis
° The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk as at the reporting date.

° As at the teporting date if equity prices are 20% higher/lower on the market value uniformly for all
equities while all other vatiables are held constant, the impact on profit or loss and other comprehensive
income has been shown above.

. A 20% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.

24,10 Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between book values and the
fair value estimates. Underlying the definidon of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern
without any intention ot requirement to materially curtail the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on

adverse terms.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments cartried at amortised cost
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

(b) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:
Financial Fair value as at

assets 2021 2020 Valuation Relationship of
techniques Significant unobservable
Fair value and key  unobservable inputs to fair
AED AED  hierarchy inputs input value
Investments
carried at
FVTOCI
Listed equity Quoted bid
Securities prices in an
(Note 5) 173,974,245 211,659,656  Level 1 active market. None N/A
Financial
assets
carried  at
FVIPL
Listed equity Quoted bid
Securities prices in an
(Note 5) 41,951,275 25,164,972  Level 1 active market. None N/A
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24, Financial instruments (continued)

24.10 Fair value measurements (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial and non-financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fait value is

observable:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
31 December 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED

Financial assets carried at
FVTOCI

Quoted equities (Note 5) 173,974,245 - - 173,974,245
Financial assets carried at
FVTPL
Quoted equities (Note 5) 41,951,275 - - 41,951,275
215,925,520 - - 215,925,520
31 December 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets carried at
FVTOCI
Quoted equities (Note 5) 211,659,656 - - 211,659,656
Financial assets carried at
FVTPL
Quoted equities (Note 5) 25,164,972 - - 25,164,972
236,824,628 - - 236,824,628

There wete no transfers between the levels during the year. There are no financial liabilities which should be
measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.

25. Geographical information

In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, tevenue is based on the geographical location of customers.

2021 2020

AED AED

United Arab Emirates 102,361,891 99,163,124
Gulf Coopetation Council countries 41,211,224 37,947,234
India 70,069,259 62,979,184
Jordan 1,669,349 6,197,431
Yemen 2,534,198 2,260,144
Other countties 21,963,125 12,645,543
239,809,046 221,192,660
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Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction Materials P.S.C.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

26. Comparatives

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform to cutrent yeat's presentation. However,
there is no effect on previously reported total equity, profit for the year and the net change in cash and cash
equivalents.

27. Subsequent events

On 31 January 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance announced the introduction of a 9% federal corporate tax rate
effective for fiscal years commencing on or after June 1, 2023. There are no implications to the consolidated
financial and reporting year ended December 31, 2021. Management is in the process of evaluating the
consequences to the consolidated financial statements and will communicate the conclusion of their evaluation at
an appropriate future time.

There have been no other events subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial position date that would
significantly affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements fot the yeat ended December 31,
2021.

28. Social contributions

The social contributions (including donations and charity) made duting the year amounted to AED 245,000
(2020: AED 275,331).

29. Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that
are used to make strategic decisions.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and setvices and the
following reportable segments:

(1) Manufacturing of white cement, lime products, cement products.
(2) Investments in marketable equity securities.

There ate no sales between segments during the year.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net profit or loss and is
measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should seek your own independent financial advice immediately
from an independent financial adviser who is licensed by the SCA.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your RAKWCT Shares (other than pursuant to the Offer), please send this document at once
to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, broker, or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for delivery to the
purchaser or transferee. However, the foregoing documents must not be forwarded or transmitted in or into any Restricted
Jurisdiction (as defined below) or in or into any jurisdiction where to do so would constitute a violation of the relevant laws in
that jurisdiction. If you have sold or transferred only part of your holding of RAKWCT Shares, you should retain this document and consult
your professional adviser.

This Document has been prepared based on the provisions of the Decision of the Chairman of SCA No. (18 / RM) of 2017 regarding the
rules for acquisition and merger of public joint-stock companies and the Administrative Decision No. (62 / RT) of 2017 regarding the technical
requirements for acquisition and merger rules.

Capitalised terms in this UltraTech Offer Document shall have the meaning given to them in Annex VI (Definitions).

Offer Document

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited's conditional cash offer to acquire 31.6%
of the issued and paid-up ordinary share capital of Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement &
Construction Materials PSC for

AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share
DISCLAIMER STATEMENT:

The SCA and the ADX shall not bear any responsibility for the content of this UltraTech Offer Document and shall not submit any
confirmation in relation to the accuracy or completeness thereof, and hereby expressly disclaim any responsibility for any loss arising from
the content of this offer document or from relying on any part thereof.

Offeror
UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

P.O. Box 4421, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Legal adviser to Transaction Manager
the Offeror
Baker & McKenzie LLP ADCB

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares are deposited and instruct them
to place their Sell Order as a good till canceled order with a limited price equating the Offer Price no later than 2.00 pm on 24 June
2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance on the procedures for acceptance
of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This UltraTech Offer Document is dated 27 May 2024.

il
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ULTRATECH'S DECLARATION
1 Responsibility

UltraTech and its Board of Directors are fully responsible for the validity and accuracy of the information contained in this
document. The information contained in this document for which it is responsible is in accordance with the facts and does not
intentionally omit or ignore any material fact likely to affect the importance or completeness of such information within this
UltraTech Offer Document and there are no material facts that have been omitted or left out, and the Board of Directors of
Ultratech Cement Middle East Investments Limited has acted in good faith in preparing this document.

iii
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TO ACCEPT THE OFFER

RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares are deposited and
instruct them to place their Sell Order as a good till cancelled order with a limited price equating the Offer Price no later
than 2.00 pm on 24 June 2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance on the procedures
for acceptance of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this UltraTech Offer Document. If you have any
questions relating to the procedure for acceptance of the Offer, please contact the Transaction Manager on
+97128126481 between 8.00 A.M. and 4.00 P.M. from Monday to Friday or at CapitalMarketsTeam@adcb.com,
or you may contact your broker. The Transaction Manager cannot provide advice on the merits of the Offer nor
give any financial, legal or tax advice.

You are advised to read the whole of this document carefully.

THE OFFER CLOSING DATE IS 2.00 P.M. ON 24 JUNE 2024
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Event Date

Announcement to the Offer Monday, 27 May 2024

Dispatch of the UltraTech Offer Document Monday, 27 May 2024

to RAKWCT

Offer opening date Tuesday, 28 May 2024

Offer Closing Date 2.00 p.m. on Monday, 24 June 2024

Offer results announcement Tuesday, 25 June 2024

Settlement of the applications for Within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18,
acceptance 2024, being: a period of 28 days (the closure of the

Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required to fulfill
all Offer Conditions, including holding the RAKWCT
GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated for settlement of
the consideration after all Conditions have been met).
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

IMPORTANT: If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, it is recommended
that you seek your own independent financial advice from an independent financial
advisor who is licensed by SCA.

No person should construe the contents of this document as legal, financial or tax advice.
Overseas RAKWCT Shareholders

This document has been prepared in compliance with applicable laws and regulations of the
UAE and the information disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been
disclosed if this document had been prepared in accordance with the laws and/or regulations
of jurisdictions outside the UAE. The Offer is being made in relation to securities of a UAE
company and you should be aware that this document and any other documents relating to
the Offer have been or will be prepared in accordance with UAE disclosure requirements,
format and style, all of which may differ from those applicable in other jurisdictions.

The Offer is not being made, directly or indirectly, in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction
where to do so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and the Offer is not capable of
acceptance from or within a Restricted Jurisdiction. Accordingly, copies of this document and
any accompanying document are not being, and must not be, directly or indirectly, mailed or
otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction where to do
so would violate the laws in that jurisdiction, and persons receiving this document and any
accompanying document (including custodians, nominees and trustees) must not mail or
otherwise distribute or send them in, into or from such jurisdictions as doing so may invalidate
any purported Sell Order. The availability of the Offer to RAKWCT Shareholders who are not
resident in the United Arab Emirates may be affected by the laws of the relevant jurisdictions
in which they are resident. Such persons should inform themselves about and observe any
applicable legal or regulatory requirements of their jurisdiction.

If you are aresident of the United States, please read the following:

The Offer is being made to acquire the securities of RAKWCT, a company incorporated and
registered in Ras Al Khaimah, United Arab Emirates, and is being made in the United States
in reliance on, and compliance with, the exemption from the US Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, afforded by Rule 14d-1(c), Section 14(e) and Regulation 14E thereunder.
The Offer shall be made in the United States by UltraTech and no one else.

The Offer is subject to the disclosure and procedural requirements of the United Arab Emirates,
which differ from those in the United States, including with respect to withdrawal rights and
offer timetable that are different from those applicable under US domestic tender offer
procedures and law. In addition, the payment and settlement procedure with respect to the
Offer shall comply with the relevant United Arab Emirates rules, which differ from United States
payment and settlement procedures, particularly with regard to the date of payment of
consideration. Neither the SEC, nor any securities commission of any state of the United
States, has approved the Offer, passed upon the fairness of the Offer or passed upon the
adequacy or accuracy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offence in the United States.

Financial information relating to RAKWCT included in this document has been prepared in
accordance with IFRS and other mandatory reporting requirements applicable in the UAE and
may not be comparable to financial information of US companies or companies whose
financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States.
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It may be difficult for investors to enforce their rights and any claim they may have arising
under US federal securities laws, since UltraTech and RAKWCT are UAE companies, and
some or all of their officers and directors are residents of countries other than the United States.
Investors may not be able to sue a non-US company or its officers or directors in a non-US
court for violations of the US securities laws. It may be difficult to compel a non-US company
and its affiliates to subject themselves to a US court's judgment.

The receipt of cash pursuant to the Offer by a US holder of securities of RAKWCT may be a
taxable transaction for US federal income tax purposes and under applicable state and local,
as well as foreign and other tax laws. Each holder of securities of RAKWCT is urged to consult
his independent professional adviser immediately regarding the tax consequences of a Sell
Order.

Any person (including custodians, nominees and trustees) who would, or otherwise
intends to, or may have a contractual or legal obligation to forward this document to
any jurisdiction outside the United Arab Emirates, should read paragraph 5 of Section
Il (Further Terms of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer Document before taking any action.

Information provided as at the date of this UltraTech Offer Document

Statements contained in this UltraTech Offer Document are made as at the date of this
UltraTech Offer Document, unless some other time is specified in relation to them, and the
publication of this document (or any action taken pursuant to it) shall not give rise to any
implication that there has been no change in the facts or affairs of RAKWCT as set out in this
UltraTech Offer Document since such date. UltraTech expressly disclaims any obligation to
update such statements other than as required by law or by the rules of any competent
regulatory authority, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

No representations

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations other
than those contained in this document and, if given or made, such information or
representations must not be relied on as having been authorised by UltraTech or any of the
other advisers in connection with the Offer.

Publication on website

This document shall be available on RAKWCT's website at Investor Relations (rakcc.ae) by
the next Business Day in the UAE following the date of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Rounding

Certain figures included in this UltraTech Offer Document have been subjected to rounding
adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown for the same category presented in different tables
may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic
aggregation of the figures that precede them.

Forward-looking statements

This UltraTech Offer Document (including information incorporated by reference in this
document), oral statements made regarding the Offer, and other information published by the
Offeror (or any of the Offeror's affiliates) contain statements which are, or may be deemed to
be, "forward-looking statements". Such forward-looking statements are prospective in nature
and are not based on historical facts, but rather on current expectations and on numerous
assumptions regarding the business strategies and the environment in which RAKWCT
operates in the future and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those expressed or implied by those statements. The forward-looking
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statements contained in this document relate to RAKWCT's future prospects, developments
and business strategies, expectations in relation to the timing of the Offer and the outcome of
various stages of the Transaction and other statements which are not historical facts. In some
cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking

terminology, including the terms "believes", "estimates", "will look to", "would look to", "plans”,

"prepares", "anticipates", "expects", "is expected to", "is subject to", "budget", "scheduled",
"forecasts", "synergy", "strategy", "goal", "cost-saving", "projects", "intends", "may", "will",
"shall" or "should" or their negatives or other variations or comparable terminology. Forward-
looking statements may include statements relating to the following: (i) future capital
expenditures, expenses, revenues, earnings, synergies, economic performance,
indebtedness, financial condition, dividend policy, losses and future prospects; (ii) business
and management strategies; (iii) the effects of global economic conditions and governmental
regulation on UltraTech's or RAKWCT's business; and (iv) steps in the Transaction process
the outcome of which is dependent on third party acts / omission or otherwise beyond
UltraTech's control. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may occur in the future.
These events and circumstances include changes in the global, political, economic, business,
competitive, market and regulatory forces, future exchange and interest rates, changes in tax
rates and/or regimes and future business combinations or disposals. If any one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialises or if any one or more of the assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those expected, estimated or projected.
Such forward-looking statements should therefore be construed in the light of such factors.
Neither UltraTech nor any of their respective associates or directors, officers or advisers,
provides any representation, assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events
expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements in this UltraTech Offer Document shall
actually occur. Given these risks and uncertainties, potential investors should not place any
reliance on forward-looking statements.

Presentation of financial and other information

RAKWCT's audited consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 are prepared in accordance with IFRS. Save
where expressly stated otherwise, financial information incorporated by reference into this
document as set out in Annex || (RAKWCT's Financial Statements) is based on management
estimates and has not been independently verified by auditors or otherwise. Save as disclosed
otherwise, all financial information is set out in AED.

No profit (or loss) forecasts or estimates

No statement in this document is intended as a profit (or loss) forecast or profit (or loss)
estimate and no statement in this document should be interpreted to mean that earnings or
earnings per RAKWCT Share for the current or future financial years would necessarily match
or exceed the historical published earnings or earning per RAKWCT Share or to mean that
RAKWCT's earnings in the first 12 months following the Offer, or in any subsequent period,
would necessarily match or be greater than those of RAKWCT for the relevant preceding
financial period or any other period.

Language

This UltraTech Offer Document has been prepared in both English and Arabic. The English is
an unofficial English translation of the formal UltraTech Offer Document published in the Arabic
language.
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Definitions

Certain words and terms used in this UltraTech Offer Document are defined in Annex VI
(Definitions) of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Dates and time

All references to dates and times shown in this UltraTech Offer Document are to the Gregorian
calendar and UAE time, respectively, unless otherwise stated.

Date of publication

The date of publication of this UltraTech Offer Document is 27 May 2024.
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LETTER FROM ULTRATECH CEMENT MIDDLE EAST INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated and registered in JAFZA, UAE with commercial registration number 132239)
Monday, 27 May 2024
OFFER FOR YOUR SHARES IN RAKWCT
Dear RAKWCT Shareholder,

UltraTech is making a partial conditional cash offer to you, as a RAKWCT Shareholder, for the
shares you hold in RAKWCT in return for the payment in cash of AED 1.15 per RAKWCT
Share you hold in accordance with the process set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This UltraTech Offer Document has been prepared in connection with a conditional cash offer
(the "Offer") and is made by UltraTech (the "Offeror" or "UltraTech") in order to acquire 31.6%
of the issued and paid-up ordinary shares of RAKWCT (the "Offeree" or "RAKWCT") not
already held by UltraTech on the terms and conditions set out in this UltraTech Offer Document.

This Offer becomes unconditional only if the Conditions are fulfilled or waived, as set out in
paragraph 5 of Section | (General Information and Details of the Offer) of this UltraTech Offer
Document and has been constituted in compliance with applicable laws and/or regulations and
certain approvals and exemptions granted in respect of this Offer.

The Offer is in accordance with the procedure applied by the ADX and will be executed as
follows:

(a) the Shares of RAKWCT shall be traded in accordance with the trading rules applicable
to ADX;

(b) buy & sell orders will be placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board of ADX; whereby,
UltraTech’s buy order will be placed daily with ADCB Securities LLC, the brokerage
subsidiary of the Transaction Manager (“ADCBS”);

(c) Sell Orders will be placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board daily by a licensed broker;
(d) Sell Orders placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board of ADX are valid for one day only;

(e) ADX will consider Sell Orders placed on the “Negotiated Deal” board which are
consistent with the terms of this Offer; Sales Orders which are placed on the
“Negotiated Transactions” board but whose prices differ from the price shown in this
Offer Document will be cancelled;

(f) orders will only be entered during the Offer Period, with no execution until the closing
date/time of the Offer Period; and

(9) Sell Orders on the last day of the Offer Period shall be entered in the electronic trading
system starting 10:00 am until 2:00 pm of the same day without executing any such
order and the trading system shall proceed to the execution of these orders after trading
hours.

Background to and reasons for the Offer

On the same day of the announcement of Ultratech's intention to carry out an acquisition in
accordance with Article 22 of the Takeover Code, UltraTech will send to the board of directors
of RAKWCT this UltraTech Offer Document. UltraTech and RAKWCT will also enter into an
Implementation Agreement.
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Within 14 days of receiving this Offer Document, the board of RAKWCT will dispatch to you
the RAKWCT Offeree Circular which UltraTech expects will contain the recommendation by
the board of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders to accept this Offer and vote in favour
of the resolutions proposed at the RAKWCT GM in respect of this Offer.

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered at the end of the Offer Period is more than the
specific number of shares set out in the Offer, UltraTech will acquire from all the RAKWCT
Shareholders who have accepted the Offer a number of RAKWCT Shares pro rata to the total
number of shares set out in the Offer. Fraction shares will be adjusted to the benefit of minority
RAKWCT Shareholders.

The intentions, plans and purpose of the Transaction

By increasing its ownership percentage in the share capital of RAKWCT, UltraTech wishes to
better benefit from its expertise in the field of white cement manufacturing through expanding
the business of RAKWCT locally, regionally and globally, including providing modern products
such as wall care putty and other new products.

Key benefits for RAKWCT Shareholders

Under the terms of the Offer, RAKWCT Shareholders will be entitled to receive:
AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share (the "Offer Price")

The Offer Price may not be lower than the highest price of the following:

(a) The market price on the first day of the Offer.

(b) The closing price prior to the first day of the Offer commencement.

(c) The average price during the 3 months preceding the start of the Offer.

(d) The highest price paid by the acquiring party to buy the shares during the 12 months
preceding the submission of the Offer.

Offer Conditions

The Offer will be subject to the fulfilment of the Conditions set out in paragraph 5 of Section |
(General Information and Details of the Offer) of this UltraTech Offer Document. Key
Conditions of the Offer include the passing of certain resolutions of the RAKWCT GM by the
RAKWCT Shareholders and the receipt of any required regulatory and statutory approvals.

If the RAKWCT GM is not held, none of the RAKWCT Shareholders will be entitled to receive
the Offer Price including those RAKWCT Shareholders who may have already submitted a
Sell Order to the broker.

Please refer to paragraph 5 of Section | (General Information and Details of the Offer) of this
UltraTech Offer Document for the complete list of Conditions.

Shareholder actions to be taken

RAKWCT Shareholders wishing to accept the Offer must contact their broker where their shares
are deposited and instruct them to place their Sell Order at the Offer Price no later than 2.00 pm
on 24 June 2024 (or such later date as may be notified by UltraTech to RAKWCT).

Submission of the Sell Order shall be construed as acceptance of the Offer. Further guidance
on the procedures for acceptance of the Offer and placing the Sell Order are set out in this
UltraTech Offer Document.

11
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By placing the Sell Order, the RAKWCT Shareholders would agree that they may be blocked
from trading by the ADX in respect of those RAKWCT Shares for which they have placed the
Sell Order.

As a RAKWCT Shareholder, you are encouraged to read this UltraTech Offer Document in full
and to attend the RAKWCT GM and, if you are in agreement with the Offer, vote in favour of the
resolutions proposed at the RAKWCT GM to support and accept this Offer, even if you have
successfully placed the Sell Order.

Yours faithfully,

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

12
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SECTION I: GENERAL INFORMATION AND DETAILS OF THE OFFER
1. Summary of the terms of the Offer

UltraTech offers to acquire (on the terms and subject to the Conditions set out in this UltraTech
Offer Document) 31.6% of the issued and paid-up share capital of RAKWCT for cash.

UltraTech and RAKWCT shall enter into an Implementation Agreement setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate to the Offer among other things. In particular,
UltraTech shall undertake to pay the Offer Price for the RAKWCT Shares which it acquires
pursuant to the Offer, subject to satisfaction of certain Conditions including those in paragraph
5 of this Section | (General Terms and Details of the Offer) below.

In consideration of the offer:

Under the terms of the Offer, holders of RAKWCT Shares (excluding UltraTech) shall receive
the following Offer Price:

AED 1.15 in cash for each RAKWCT Share

The offer price was determined in accordance with the provisions of Article (6) of the Takeover
Code which provides that the Offer Price may not be lower than the highest price of the
following:

(a) The market price on the first day of the Offer.
(b) The closing price prior to the first day of the Offer commencement.
(c) The average price during the 3 months preceding the start of the Offer.

(d) The highest price paid by the acquiring party to buy the shares during the 12 months
preceding the submission of the Offer.

The closing price of RAKWCT Shares, for the first day of each of the six months preceding the
date of publication of this UltraTech Offer Document is:

Date Closing Price (AED)
01/05/2024 0.98
01/04/2024 1.06
01/03/2024 1.15
01/02/2024 1.16
01/01/2024 1.14
01/12/2023 1.17
01/11/2023 1.18

The price of RAKWCT Shares on the last day preceding the commencement of the Offer
Period is AED 1.09 and on the last day available before the UltraTech Offer Document
publishing date is AED 0.97.

The Offer is to acquire RAKWCT Shares (which are not owned by UltraTech) that comprise
31.6% of RAKWCT's issued and paid up share capital as at the date of this UltraTech Offer
Document, being 158,049,610 RAKWCT Shares of a nominal value of AED 1.00 per share.

The total amount of the Offer, in respect of the RAKWCT Shares (being 158,049,610 ordinary
shares in RAKWCT) subject to this Offer, will be AED 181,757,052.

The RAKWCT Shares shall be acquired by UltraTech under the Offer on the basis that the
RAKWCT Shares are paid up and free from all liens, charges, equities, encumbrances, options,
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rights of pre-emption and any other third party rights and interests of any nature whatsoever
and together with all rights now and hereafter attaching or accruing to them, including, without
limitation, voting rights and the right to receive and retain in full all dividends and other
distributions (if any) declared, made or paid, or any other return of value (whether by reduction
of share capital or share premium account or otherwise) made, on or after the date of this
UltraTech Offer Document.

The Offer shall be subject to the Conditions and further terms set out or referred to in
paragraph 5 of this Section | (General Terms and Details of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer
Document.

If the number of RAKWCT Shares offered at the end of the Offer Period is more than the
specific number of shares set out in the Offer, UltraTech will acquire from all the RAKWCT
Shareholders who have accepted the Offer a number of RAKWCT Shares pro rata to the total
number of shares set out in the Offer. With rounding of fractions to the benefit of minority
RAKWCT Shareholders.

On 25 June 2024 (being the day following the Offer closing date), UltraTech will announce the
acceptance results of the Offer provided that all Conditions, requirements and approvals
related to the Offer are met, so that the offer becomes unconditional in all respects. UltraTech
will, within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18, 2024 (being: a period of 28 days (the
closure of the Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required to fulfill all Offer Conditions,
including holding the RAKWCT GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated for settlement of the
consideration after all Conditions have been met)), settle the consideration due to the
accepting RAKWCT Shareholders through payment by ADX of the cash consideration to the
broker who submitted the Sell Order who will in turn make the payment into each accepting
RAKWCT Shareholder respective account with them.

2, Information on RAKWCT (the "Target Company")

Detail of RAKWCT key financial information for the last 3 years is outlined below. Please refer
to RAKWCT's audited consolidated financial statements for the three years ended 31
December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 as attached in Annex Il for further

information.
(Amount in AED)
2021 2022 2023

Sales 239,809,046 247,668,393 255,898,035
Net profit before tax 32,871,759 21,086,397 20,543,520
Tax Paid Nil Nil Nil
Net Profit after tax 32,871,759 21,086,397 20,543,520
Net Profit including
comprehensive income 64,145,813 41,244 921 14,080,349
Exceptional Items Nil Nil Nil
Minority Interest Nil Nil Nil
Dividend paid (related to
previous year) 25,007,850 50,015,700 Nil
Profit for each share 0.07 0.04 0.04

The list of the assets and liabilities based on the interim condensed consolidated statement of
financial position commencing on 31 December 2023 and ended in 31 March 2024, the cash
flow statement for the three-month period ended March 2024, and the statement of profit or
loss for the three-month period ended March, 2024, are as attached in Annex Il
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There have been no material changes to the financial or commercial position of the RAKWCT
Shares after the latest audited financial statements published.

The sales, net profits or losses, and any exceptional items, minority interests, and the total
amount of dividends, proceeds, and profits for each share announced in the initial
announcement or initial financial statements issued since the publishing of the latest audited
financial statements are detailed below:

(Amount in AED)

3 months ended March 2024

Sales 63,039,599
Net profit before tax 14,318,196
Tax Paid 1,193,634
Net Profit after tax 13,124,562
Net Profit including comprehensive income 9,632,211
Exceptional Items Nil
Minority Interest Nil
Dividend paid (related to previous year) Nil
Profit for each share (annualized) 0.10

There have also been no amendments to the accounting policy of list of RAKWCT since the
publishing of the latest audited financial statements.

3. Information on UltraTech (the "Offeror")

UltraTech is a company incorporated and registered in the Jebel Ali Free Zone (JAFZA), Jebel
Ali, United Arab Emirates with commercial registration number 132239 and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of UltraTech Cement Limited, incorporated in India. The ownership structure of
UltraTech and its associated group is attached in Annex IV.

There have been no dealings of RAKWCT shares by UltraTech or its associated group during
the six months preceding the date of this UltraTech Offer Document.

Given the Offer is an offer of cash consideration, RAKWCT Shareholders will not be issued
shares in UltraTech and therefore any accepting RAKWCT Shareholder will not be affected
by future profits or losses or changes to the assets or business of UltraTech.

4, Financing of the Offer and cash confirmation

The source of financing for the cash consideration payable in full under the Offer is
credit/financing from Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank in the United Arab Emirates which is
licensed by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates.

A copy of the certificate confirming the availability of the cash consideration with UltraTech to
implement the Offer and fulfill the full cash consideration for the Offer is attached in Appendix
V.

5. Conditions to the Offer

The Offer is subject to the Conditions and further terms set out below and in Section Il (Further
Terms of the Offer) to this UltraTech Offer Document, which include:
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(a) receipt of all required governmental, corporate, regulatory and statutory approvals,
exemptions and/or waivers in connection with the Transaction, including receipt of the
final written approval(s) of the SCA in relation to the Offer;

(b) provision by RAKWCT of all of the information required or requested by the SCA in
relation to the Transaction;

(c) dispatch of the RAKWCT Offeree Circular by RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders
(and no subsequent revocation of or change to the recommendation by the board of
directors of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders to accept the Offer and vote in
favour of the relevant resolutions at the RAKWCT GM);

(d) the RAKWCT Shareholders passing the requisite resolutions in relation to the Offer at
the RAKWCT GM;

(e) no Material Adverse Effect having occurred prior to the satisfaction of all the Conditions,
requirements and approvals related to the Offer;

) obtaining the approval of the Ministry of Economy with regards to the Offer; and

(9) obtaining any necessary approvals required from any third parties pursuant to any
commercial contracts of RAKWCT.

6. Tax

The tax consequences for RAKWCT Shareholders pursuant to the transaction contemplated
by the Offer depend upon the shareholders' individual circumstances. RAKWCT Shareholders
should therefore consult their own tax advisers as to the particular tax consequences on them
of accepting the Offer.

7. Rights of the RAKWCT Shareholders

All RAKWCT Shareholders will have equal rights and liabilities arising from, or in relation to,
the Offer.

8. Accuracy and fairness standards

The highest accuracy and fairness standards were observed in the content of this UltraTech
Offer Document.

9. Recommendation or Opinion of a Financial Advisor

In accordance with Article 19(1) of the Takeover Code, RAKWCT will appoint an independent
financial advisor to prepare a financial study with regards to the Offer to be presented to the
shareholders of RAKWCT.
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SECTION II: FURTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER

The following further terms apply, unless the context otherwise requires, to the Offer. Except
where the context requires otherwise, any reference in this Section Il (Further Terms of
the Offer):

to the "Offer" shall mean the Offer and any revision, variation or renewal thereof or
extension thereto and shall include any election available in connection with it;

to "acceptances of the Offer" shall include deemed acceptances of the Offer and
placement of Sell Orders; and

to the "UltraTech Offer Document" shall mean this document and any other document
published by UltraTech and stated to constitute a UltraTech Offer Document containing
details of, the Offer.

1. ACCEPTANCE PERIOD

(a)

(e)

The Offer will initially be open for acceptance until 2.00 p.m. on the Offer Closing Date.
UltraTech reserves the right (but shall not be obliged, other than as may be required
by the SCA) at any time or from time to time to extend the Offer Period beyond that
time and to make consequential changes to other dates referred to in this UltraTech
Offer Document, subject to the approval of the SCA. If UltraTech exercises such right,
it shall make an announcement stating the revised Offer Period.

Following the Offer Closing Date, UltraTech will not receive any sell orders from
RAKWCT Shareholders who have not accepted the Offer by the Offer Closing Date.

A Sell Order may be withdrawn by a RAKWCT Shareholder once submitted to the
broker.

RAKWCT Shareholders who have accepted the Offer may withdraw their acceptance
of the Offer after a period of 14 days from the Offer Closing Date in the event that the
Offer does not acheive its minimum number of acceptance applications during the Offer
Period or the period specified by SCA.

Although no revision is contemplated, if the Offer is revised (in its original or previously
revised form(s) and either in its terms or conditions or in the value or form of the
consideration offered or otherwise), the benefit of the revised offer shall be made
available to a RAKWCT Shareholder who has accepted the Offer. UltraTech reserves
the right to treat a Sell Order relating to the Offer (in its original or any previously revised
form(s)) which is received by the broker after the announcement or issue of any revised
offer as a valid acceptance of the revised offer.

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Following the Offer Closing Date, UltraTech shall make an announcement in the UAE stating
the number of RAKWCT Shares, respectively, and specifying the total number of shares for
which the Offer has been accepted.

3. GENERAL

(a)

The Offer will lapse unless all the conditions set out in paragraph 5 of Section | (General
Information and Details of the Offer) have been fulfilled by midnight on 19 July 2024 or
such later date as UltraTech may decide (subject to the approval of the SCA) and if
UltraTech exercises such right it shall make an announcement stating such date.
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(b) Settlement of the consideration to which any RAKWCT Shareholder is entitled under
the Offer will be implemented in full in accordance with the terms of the Offer without
regard to any lien, right of set-off, counterclaim or other analogous right to which
UltraTech may otherwise be, or claim to be, entitled as against such RAKWCT
Shareholder.

(c) The Offer Price shall be the only amount payable by UltraTech in connection with the
acceptance of this Offer and the placement of the Sell Order. For the avoidance of
doubt, neither UltraTech nor any member of the UltraTech Group will be responsible
for any taxes, costs or expenses that a RAKWCT Shareholder may incur in connection
therewith, including, but not limited to, any costs of any advisers and/or brokers, any
banks charges or any costs / losses / taxes incurred in relation to the conversion of the
Offer Price into a foreign currency or otherwise.

(d) The Offer, this document, and all elections thereunder or pursuant thereto and all
contracts or Sell Orders made pursuant thereto and action taken or made or deemed
to be taken or made under any of the foregoing shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with UAE Federal Law. The making of an Sell Order by a RAKWCT
Shareholder will constitute the making by such shareholder of the representations,
warranties and agreements in relation to all matters arising out of or in connection with
the Offer and the acceptance, to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Abu Dhabi and his
agreement that nothing shall limit the rights of UltraTech to bring any action, suit or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the Offer and acceptance in any other
manner permitted by law or in any court of competent jurisdiction.

(e) Any accidental omission to dispatch this document or any notice required to be given
under the terms of the Offer to, or any failure to receive the same by, any person to
whom the Offer is made or should be made shall not invalidate the Offer in any way or
create any implication that the Offer has not been made to any such person.

(f) UltraTech reserves the right to treat acceptances of the Offer and/or elections pursuant
thereto as valid if received by or on behalf of either of them at any place or places orin
any manner determined by them otherwise than as stated herein.

(9) The Offer extends to any RAKWCT Shareholders other than overseas shareholders to
whom this document, and any related documents, may not have been dispatched or
by whom such documents may not be received and such shareholders may obtain
copies of those documents at RAKWCT's website at Investor Relations (www.rakcc.ae).
UltraTech reserves the right to notify any matter in relation to this Offer, including the
making of the Offer, to all or any RAKWCT Shareholders with a registered address
outside the UAE (or whom UltraTech knows to be nominees, trustees or custodians for
such persons) by announcement in the UAE or paid advertisement in a daily
newspaper published and circulated in the UAE, in which event such notice shall be
deemed to have been sufficiently given notwithstanding any failure by a RAKWCT
Shareholder to receive such notice and all references in this document to notice, or the
provision of information in writing, by UltraTech, and/or its respective agent and/or
public relations consultants shall be construed accordingly.

(h) The Offer is made on 27 May 2024 and is capable of acceptance from and after 28
May 2024. The Offer is being made by means of this document, after the SCA's
approval.

(i) UltraTech reserves the right to make such alterations, additions or modifications as
may be necessary or desirable to give effect to any purported acceptance of the Offer.

18
445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS



)] All references in this document to any statute or statutory provision shall include a
statute or statutory provision which amends, consolidates or replaces the same
(whether before or after the date hereof).

(k) Any RAKWCT Shareholder who has pledged or otherwise subjected his RAKWCT
Shares to any form of security or attachment (such as a court order) must contact the
bank or entity in whose favour the RAKWCT Shares have been pledged or any other
security over the shares has been granted or attached and obtain written clearance
from that bank or entity to transfer those RAKWCT Shares to UltraTech. The written
clearance (or a certified copy thereof) must be lodged with the Sell Order, otherwise,
those RAKWCT Shares may not be transferred to UltraTech and the Offer may not
have been accepted in respect of such RAKWCT Shares.

)] If a RAKWCT Shareholder lodges a Sell Order with a broker in respect of RAKWCT
Shares, it may not subsequently transfer any or all of its RAKWCT Shares to a third
party prior to the Offer Closing Date.

4. If you have accepted the Offer and placed a Sell Order in accordance with the terms of the
UltraTech Offer Document, UltraTech will, within a period not exceeding Thursday, July 18,
2024 (being: a period of 28 days (the closure of the Offer Period) + 21 days (the period required
to fulfill all Offer Conditions, including holding the RAKWCT GM) + 3 days (the period stipulated
for settlement of the consideration after all Conditions have been met)), settle the cash
consideration due to you pursuant to this Offer through payment by ADX of the cash
consideration to the broker who submitted the Sell Order who will in turn make the payment
into your respective account with them.

5. OVERSEAS RAKWCT SHAREHOLDERS

(a) RAKWCT Shareholders in Restricted Jurisdictions should inform themselves about
and observe any applicable legal requirements. It is the responsibility of any such
shareholders wishing to accept the Offer to satisfy themselves as to the full observance
of the laws of the relevant jurisdiction in connection therewith, including the obtaining
of any governmental, exchange control or other consents which may be required, the
compliance with other necessary formalities and the payment of any issue, transfer or
other taxes or duties due in such jurisdiction. Any such shareholder will be responsible
for any issue, transfer or other taxes or other requisite payments by whomsoever
payable and UltraTech, and any person acting on its behalf, shall be fully indemnified
and held harmless by such shareholder for any such issue, transfer or other taxes or
other requisite payments as UltraTech, and any person acting on its behalf may be
required to pay. If you are a RAKWCT Shareholder resident in a Restricted Jurisdiction
and you are in any doubt about your position, you should consult your professional
adviser in your relevant jurisdiction.

In particular, unless otherwise determined by UltraTech and permitted by applicable
law and regulation, the Offer is not being made, directly or indirectly, in or into or by the
use of the mail, or by any means or instrumentality (including, without limitation, telex,
facsimile transmission, telephone, internet or other forms of electronic communication)
of interstate or foreign commerce, or by any facilities of a national securities exchange
of, a Restricted Jurisdiction and the Offer cannot be accepted by any such use, means
or instrumentality or otherwise from or within a Restricted Jurisdiction. Accordingly, this
document, and any accompanying document are not being, and must not be mailed or
otherwise forwarded, distributed or sent in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction to any
resident or national of a Restricted Jurisdiction, including (without limitation) to
RAKWCT Shareholders with registered addresses in a Restricted Jurisdiction or to
persons whom UltraTech knows to be trustees, nominees or custodians holding
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RAKWCT Shares for such persons. Persons receiving such documents (including,
without limitation, trustees, nominees or custodians) must not distribute, send or mail
them in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction or to any resident or national of a
Restricted Jurisdiction, or use any such instrument for any purpose directly or indirectly
in connection with the Offer and so doing may invalidate any related purported
acceptance of the Offer. Persons wishing to accept the Offer must not use mails of a
Restricted Jurisdiction or any such means or instrumentality for any purpose directly or
indirectly related to acceptance of the Offer or such election.

(b) Neither UltraTech nor any agent or adviser or general manager of UltraTech or any
person acting on its behalf shall have any liability to any person for any loss or alleged
loss arising from any decision as to the treatment of acceptances of the Offer, pursuant
to the provisions of this paragraph 5 of this Section Il (Further Terms of the Offer) or
otherwise in connection therewith.

(c) If, in connection with the making of the Offer, notwithstanding the restrictions described
above, any person (including, without limitation, custodians, nominees and trustees),
whether pursuant to a contractual or legal obligation or otherwise, forwards this
document or any related offering documents in, into or from a Restricted Jurisdiction or
uses the mail of or any means or instrumentality (including without limitation facsimile
transmission, electronic mail or telephone) of interstate or foreign commerce of, or any
facility of a national securities exchange of, a Restricted Jurisdiction in connection with
such forwarding, such person should: (i) inform the recipient of such fact; (ii) explain to
the recipient that such action may invalidate any purported acceptance by the recipient;
and (iii) draw the attention of the recipient to this paragraph 5 of this Section Il (Further
Terms of the Offer).
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ANNEX I:
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Interests and Dealings
(a) Interests in RAKWCT Shares
As at the date of this Offer Document:

(i) UltraTech had an ownership interest representing 29.39% (being 147,000,000 shares)
of the shares in RAKWCT.

(i) The directors of the board of directors of UltraTech do not have an ownership interest
of 5% or more in RAKWCT Shares.

(iii) No persons acting in agreement with UltraTech owns or controls an ownership interest
of 5% or more in RAKWCT Shares.

2. Arrangements

Save as disclosed in this document, there are no agreements entered into between UltraTech
(or any person acting in agreement with UltraTech) and RAKWCT in relation to the
implementation of this Offer.

UltraTech and RAKWCT shall enter into an Implementation Agreement setting out the rights
and obligations of the parties as they relate to the Offer (among other things).

3. Documents available on website

Copies of the following documents shall be made available on RAKWCT's website at Investor
Relations (www.rakcc.ae) until the end of the Offer:

3.1 the Announcement;
3.2 this UltraTech Offer Document;

3.3 annual reports of RAKWCT for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023 (see Annex Il for relevant web addresses); and

34 the RAKWCT Offeree Circular and the notice of the RAKWCT GM.

The content of the website referred to in this document is not incorporated into and does not
form part of this document.
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ANNEXII:
RAKWCT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table sets out financial information in respect of RAKWCT. The documents referred to
in the table are incorporated into this document by reference. If you are reading this document in hard
copy, please enter the web addresses below in your web browser to be brought to the relevant
document. If you are reading this document in soft copy, please click on the web addresses below to
be brought to the relevant document.

Information incorporated by  Source of Web Address
reference into this UltraTech Information
Offer Document

Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2021 wnload.aspx?doc=2488506
Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2022 wnload.aspx?doc=2821825
Financial statements for the RAKWCT https://adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdo
year ending 31 December 2023 wnload.aspx?doc=3042647
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https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdownload.aspx?doc=3042647__;!!Hj9Y_P0nvg!QI_pO-vW9OxgJUOO7AAisjspjlxiig6JYlenR3bizhxe0l7FZKzHkxmjPOqzqnjSFIfFl_5nAIIYVKnkgWT24g3BcnkEHF54$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/adxservices.adx.ae/cdn/contentdownload.aspx?doc=3042647__;!!Hj9Y_P0nvg!QI_pO-vW9OxgJUOO7AAisjspjlxiig6JYlenR3bizhxe0l7FZKzHkxmjPOqzqnjSFIfFl_5nAIIYVKnkgWT24g3BcnkEHF54$

Annex lll

List of the Assets and Liabilities & Cash Flow Statement

1. Assets and Liabilities
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2. Cash Flow Statement

445983348-v7\EMEA_DMS

24



3. Profit and Loss Statement
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Annex IV

UltraTech Ownership Structure
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Annex V

Cash Confirmation from Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank
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AED
ADCBS

Announcement

Business Day

Companies Law

Conditions

ADX
ADX CSD

GM

Governmental Body

Group

IFRS

Implementation Agreement

Legal Adviser

Material Adverse Effect
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ANNEX VI
DEFINITIONS

the UAE dirham, being the lawful currency of the UAE
means ADCB Securities LLC

the announcement dated 27 May 2024 of UltraTech's intention
to make an offer for RAKWCT pursuant to Article 24 of the
Takeover Code

any day, other than Saturdays, Sundays or public holidays in
the UAE, on which banks are normally open for business in
Dubai

UAE Federal Decree-Law No. 32 of 2021 concerning
commercial companies of the UAE (as amended)

the conditions of the Offer set out in paragraph 5 of Section |
(General Information and Details of the Offer) to this document,
and Condition means any one of them

The Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange

means the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange Clearing,
Settlement and Depository

a general meeting of RAKWCT Shareholders

any government, government department, or governmental,
quasi-governmental, supranational, statutory, regulatory,
environmental or investigative body, institution or authority
(including any competition or merger control body)

in relation to a party, its holding companies (excluding, in the
case of RAKWCT, UltraTech) and subsidiaries (excluding, in
the case of UltraTech, RAKWCT) and any subsidiary of any
such holding company from time to time

International Financial Reporting Standards

the implementation agreement to be entered into between
UltraTech and RAKWCT setting out the rights and obligations
of the parties in connection with the Transaction

Baker & McKenzie LLP, being UltraTech’s legal adviser to the
UAE, English and US law in respect of the Offer

means any event, occurrence or change in circumstances
occurring after this UltraTech Offer Document which
individually, or when aggregated with all such other events,
occurrences or changes, has or could reasonably be expected
to: (i) have a material adverse effect on the business, assets,
liabilities, financial position, profitability or prospects of (as
applicable) RAKWCT Group (taken as a whole); or (ii) directly
prevent or materially impede or delay (where such delay would
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UltraTech

UltraTech Group

UltraTech Offer Document

Offer

Offer Closing Date

Offer Completion

Offeror
Offer Period

Offer Price

Overseas RAKWCT
Shareholders

RAKWCT

RAKWCT GM
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reasonably be expected to result in the Completion Date not
taking place on or prior to an agreed long-stop date) the
consummation of the Transaction (including any court or
regulatory authority order or direction, or other form of valid
objection to the Transaction or completion of any of the
Conditions, preventing or impacting the Transaction, its
implementation or any of the steps (as set out in this
Agreement) required to effect completion of the Transaction

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

UltraTech and its holding companies and subsidiaries
(excluding RAKWCT) and any subsidiary of any such holding
company from time to time

this offer document (and any subsequent offer document)
issued by UltraTech containing or amending the terms and
conditions of the Offer

the offer, made by UltraTech, to acquire 158,049,610 shares,
representing 31.6% of the issued and paid up ordinary shares
of RAKWCT (not already owned by UltraTech) to be settled in
cash at the Offer Price and on the terms and subject to the
Conditions set out in this document and including, where the
context permits, any subsequent revision, variation, extension
or renewal of such offer

24 June 2024 (or as otherwise notified by UltraTech to
RAKWCT)

completion of this Offer being the transfer and re-registration of
the relevant RAKWCT Shares (subject to a valid acceptance
and Sell Order in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this UltraTech Offer Document) to UltraTech

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

the period beginning on and including 28 May 2024 and ending
on the earlier of: (a) 24 June 2024; (b) the date on which the
Offer lapses or is withdrawn; and (c) such other date as the
SCA may decide

AED 1.15 per RAKWCT Share

RAKWCT Shareholders (or nominees of, or custodians or
trustees for RAKWCT Shareholders) not resident in, or
nationals or citizens of the United Arab Emirates

Ras Al Khaimah Co. for White Cement & Construction
Materials PSC, a public joint stock company incorporated in the
Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah in the United Arab Emirates, having
its registered office address at PO Box 1492, Ras Al Khaimah,
United Arab Emirates

the general assembly meeting of RAKWCT to be convened in
connection with the Offer
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RAKWCT Offeree Circular

RAKWCT Shareholders

RAKWCT Shares

Restricted Jurisdiction

SCA
SEC
Sell Order

Takeover Code

Transaction

Transaction Manager

United Arab Emirates or UAE
United States or US

US Securities Exchange Act of
1934
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the offeree circular prepared by RAKWCT in accordance with
applicable law, including the recommendation of the board of
directors of RAKWCT to the RAKWCT Shareholders in
connection with the Offer

holders of RAKWCT Shares that appear on RAKWCT's share
register from time to time

the unconditionally issued and paid-up ordinary shares of a
nominal value of AED 1.00 each in the capital of RAKWCT

any jurisdiction where extension or acceptance of the Offer
would violate the law of that jurisdiction

the Securities and Commodities Authority of the UAE
the US Securities and Exchange Commission

means the deposit of the sell order at the Offer Price
by a RAKWCT Shareholder wishing to accept the
Offer with the broker where their shares are
deposited which shall be deemed an acceptance of
the Offer

the Decision of the Chairman of SCA Board of Directors No.
(18 / R.M.) of 2017 concerning the rules of acquisition and
merger of public shareholding companies

the completion of the Offer
the Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank PJSC
the United Arab Emirates

the United States of America, its territories and possessions,
any state of the United States of America, the District of
Columbia and all other areas subject to its jurisdiction and any
political sub-division thereof

the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as
amended) and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.
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